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Robeston Hall

SM8856 0961     OS  25” 1st edition XXXIII.5    Robeston West

(Also 1908 second edition map at County Library, Haverfordwest)

Considered by Cadw for inclusion in the Register but rejected.

Site of a mansion together with ruins of coach-house, stable and carriage drive, large walled garden and orchard, farm and barn set in a small park on a north-south axis which may reflect an early formality.

The Scourfield family of New Moat (Mote, Moat, The Mote, The Moat) was, in the 18th and 19th centuries, one of the largest landowners in Pembrokeshire. In the late 18th century they abandoned their home at New Moat and came to live at Robeston Hall which they had purchased. There had been a substantial house here for some time.

No doubt modernisation then took place though GH has not discovered when.

1670 Thomas Cozens taxed on six hearths

1783 puchased by Scourfield to be better situated for the social life of Milford Haven and Haverfordwest

1890 Sale of the estate of 351 acres by T.Rule Owen

1918 Sale of “farm and residence” by Evans and Roach.

1921      Owned or tenanted by the elderly parents of the estate agent Evans. Meanwhile a new mansion, which may never have been occupied by the family, was built at New Moat in 1830.

Robeston Hall burned down on the 24th August 1921. The site was later cleared and a pair of semi-detached farm houses was built there. The terrace in front (to the south) of the mansion forms their two gardens. The gently sloping lawn (105) is a paddock.
To the north-east are the remains of coach-house/stables with an arch through a high wall where the carriage drive entered the area in front of the house. The course of the drive may easily be imagined although most of its trees have been cleared from the area east of the paddock and the southern two-thirds have been superceded by self-sown sycamores. (There are some beech but they are either young or stunted – it is rather an exposed site.

There are the remains of an entrance splay and stone gate piers at the public road which runs across the park through enclosure 110.

Enclosure 106 is surrounded by a high stone wall and full of young trees; was it a (herb) garden? 

The small church has memorial tablets to the Roch family of Clareston. The Scourfields were intered at New Moat.

There are large ponds (101 and 94) and a well.

To the west of the mansion are small outbuildings. 

There is a shelter belt of mostly beech to the west of the park (104) framing the view to the south.

Some stone buildings remain in the farm (96). There is a fine arch over the entrance at the north end of the most westerly building, a cart shed.

The walled kitchen garden lies somewhat exposed on higher ground to the north of the mansion. The nearest part is bounded by high brick walls with external buttresses at intervals and capping of special bricks. There were heated glasshouses with the intra-wall/flues channels still visible at the west end. (A visitor in 1791 is quoted by Thomas Lloyd as extolling the marvelous grapes). The further part of the garden (an orchard on the map) had stone walls partly lowered by recent commercial gardeners.

To the NE of the mansion is the large barn. Nothing can be seen of the threshing mill circle marked on the maps. The building looks too unsafe to enter.
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Documents in file:

Text

OS 25” first edition map

Annotated (by SB) text submitted to RCAMW including map and completed form

Letter from GH

Letter of reply from SB

Notes on history

Sketch plan of site

Completed WHGT form

Western Telegraph 22nd August 2000  Sale of farm advertsied

Western Telegraph 24th April 2002  article on planning refers to “the old farmhouse”

Seventeen colour photographs

Western Telegraph 24th April 2002   Application to restore and extend the Old Farm House deferred to give applicant more time to complete questionnaire aimed at finding whether applicants are local or essential to the area.

